
AGENDA 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING 

Wednesday, April 26, 2023 - 2pm 
West Center Auditorium / Zoom 

*Code of Conduct

Directors:  Marge Garneau (President), Carol Crothers (Vice President), Bart Hillyer (Secretary), 
Jim Carden (Treasurer), Barbara Blake (Assistant Secretary), Laurel Dean (Assistant Treasurer), 
Nancy Austin, Kathi Bachelor, Ted Boyett, Beth Dingman, Steve Gilbert, Bev Lawless, Scott Somers 
(non-voting) 

AGENDA TOPIC 
1. Call to Order / Roll Call – Establish Quorum

2. Amend/Adopt Agenda

3. President’s Report

4. CEO Report

5. Member Comments – regarding Consent Agenda and/or Non-Agenda Items – Speakers are asked to provide their name
and GVR member number. Please limit comments to two (2) minutes.

6. Presentations
A. Quarterly Financial and Personnel Costs (Webster)

7. Committee Reports
A. Audit (Austin)
B. Board Affairs (Crothers)
C. Fiscal Affairs (Carden)
D. Investments (Lawless)
E. Nominations & Elections (Dingman)
F. Planning & Evaluation (Bachelor)

8. Consent Agenda – Consent Agenda items are routine items of business that are collectively presented for approval
through a single motion. A Board member may request that an item be pulled from the Consent Agenda and placed under
Action Items for separate discussion and action.
A. Minutes:

1) BOD Regular Meeting Minutes: March 22, 2023
2) BOD Special Meeting Minutes: March 29, 2023
3) BOD Special Meeting Minutes: April 5, 2023

9. Action Items
A. Approve Annual Meeting Calendar (President)
B. 2022 Surplus Transfer (Webster)
C. Discuss and Award Contract for Security Cameras (Somers)

10. Member Comments - Please limit comments to two (2) minutes.

11. Adjournment



Presentation: Quarterly Financial

1



2



3



4



5



6



7



Presentation: Personnel Cost

8



9



10



11



12



13



MINUTES 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Wednesday, March 22, 2023 - 2pm 
West Center Auditorium / Zoom 

*Code of Conduct 

Directors:  Kathi Bachelor (President), Donna Coon (Vice President), Bart Hillyer (Secretary), Carol 
Crothers (Treasurer), Laurel Dean (Assistant Secretary), Jim Carden (Assistant Treasurer), Nancy 
Austin, Barbara Blake, Ted Boyett, Beth Dingman, Steve Gilbert, Bev Lawless, Scott Somers (non-
voting) 

Staff Present: David Jund (Facilities Director), Nanci Moyo (Administrative Supervisor), David 
Webster (CFO), Natalie Whitman (COO), Kris Zubicki (Member Services Director) 

Visitors: 13 Including support staff 

AGENDA TOPIC 
1. Call to Order / Roll Call – Establish Quorum

The President being in the chair and the Secretary being present.
President Bachelor called the meeting to order at 2:00pm MST. Secretary Hillyer called the
roll; quorum established.

2. Amend/Adopt Agenda
MOTION: Director Boyett moved, Director Blake seconded to adopt the Agenda as amended
by moving from the Consent Agenda 7.C.1 and 7.C.3 to be the first actions under the Action
Item.
Passed: unanimous

3. Presentation
Freddie Kinnaman recognition for saving a member’s life at the Canoa Ranch Pickleball courts
by using CPR and the AED machine, along with other members assisting her.

4. President Report
• This is the last Regular meeting of the year before the Annual Meeting on March 29,

2023.
• It has been her pleasure to work with this Board as the President and to have worked

closely with CEO Somers. It has been wonderful to work with the CEO and all of the
staff at GVR.

• There is time to apply to serve on a Committee. Apply online/email or print a paper
copy and send to GVR. Available committees include: Audit Committee, Board Affairs
Committee, Fiscal Affairs Committee, Investment Committee, Nominations and
Elections Committee, and Planning and Evaluation Committee.

5. CEO Report
• It has been a pleasure working with this Board and President.

Consent Agenda A.1

14



• Desert Hills Fitness Center is on schedule. The project will be finished and the 
equipment will be delivered in May. A ribbon cutting will be scheduled for May, but 
possibly June. 

• Glass Arts Studio space has begun demolition, using GVR staff to keep the cost down. 
There will be a “ground breaking/wall smashing” event this evening with the Board 
being invited, along with contractors and others. Great opportunity to celebrate this 
project moving forward.  

• Ceramics Arts Studio design expansion is underway with the architect working on the 
final designs and development of the construction documents. The construction 
documents and cost estimates will be brought to the Board when completed to get 
Board direction. 

• Del Sol Clubhouse architectural designs for the upper and lower levels have been 
submitted to staff. Site work: the parking lot and driveways, and the tile work in the 
bathrooms all are underway. Once the bathrooms are done the temporary porta 
potties will be removed. The upper level of Del Sol Clubhouse is being used and GVR 
has received great feedback from members who are enjoying the Clubhouse. 

• Woodshop designs are being drafted by the architect and their mechanical engineer. 
This was approved as part of the 2023 Club Funding Requests. 

• Lapidary potential expansion at West Center will be discussed for program planning. 
 

6. Member Comments – no member comments 
 

7. Consent Agenda 
MOTION: Director Boyett moved, Director Blake seconded to approve the Consent Agenda 
as amended. 
Passed: unanimous 
A. Minutes   

1) BOD Regular Meeting Minutes: February 22, 2023 
2) BOD Special Meeting Minutes: March 8, 2023 
3) BOD Work Session Meeting Minutes: March 15, 2023 

B. Financial Statement 
1) February Draft Financial Statement 

C. Board Business  
1) Approve Recommended Amendments to CPM Part 7 – Moved to Action Item 
2) CPM Part 6, Section 2 Membership/Guests/Monitoring 6.2.2.K.1-5 
3) Placement of Board Credo in CPM – Moved to Action Item 

 

8. New Business 
A. Approve Recommended Amendments to CPM Part 7     

MOTION: Director Boyett moved, Director Dingman seconded to approve the 
recommended amendments to CPM Part 7. 
Passed: 9 yes / 3 no (Hillyer, Austin, Dean) 
 

B. Placement of Board Credo in CPM 
MOTION: Director Dean moved, Director Hillyer seconded to reject the whole document, 
except for the first paragraph only to be put in the Corporate Policy Manual.  
Passed: 7 yes / no 5 (Bachelor, Boyett, Dingman, Gilbert, Lawless) 

15



MOTION: Director Coon moved, Director Gilbert seconded to approve the Board Affairs 
Committee decision on the placement of the Board Credo first paragraph in Part 2, 
Section 1, and renumber the rest of Part 2.   
Passed: 11 yes / 1 no (Hillyer)  
 

C. BAC Recommendation for Board Approval – Italian Club 
MOTION: Director Coon moved, Director Crothers seconded to accept the Board Affairs 
Committee recommendation to approve an application to establish a GVR Italian Club.  
Passed: unanimous  
 

D. 2023 Work Plan Approval 
MOTION: Director Crothers moved, Director Coon seconded to approve the 2023 
proposed Work Plan.  
Passed: unanimous 
 

E. Authorize Transfer of Expense from Initiatives to Operations and Authorize an Expenditure 
of Approximately $79,836 from Initiatives to Pay the Balance Owed on Fitness Equipment 
for Desert Hills Fitness Center 
CFO David Webster said the amount for the final balance is less than stated on the Agenda 
and Staff Report. The final balance is $75,403.57. 
MOTION: Director Gilbert moved, Director Crothers seconded to authorize the transfer 
of an expense from Initiatives to Operations and authorize an expenditure of $75,403.57 
from Initiatives to pay the balance owed on fitness equipment for the Desert Hills 
Fitness Center. 
Passed: unanimous 
 

F. Procurement and Spending Authority Policy 
MOTION: Director Crothers moved, Director Boyett seconded to approve the 
Procurement and Spending Authority Policy and put in the Corporate Policy Manual in 
Part 5 Fiscal/Accounting, as Section 4.  
  

MOTION TO AMEND: Director Dingman moved, Director Gilbert seconded to move the 
amount to $25,000 versus the $5,000 before a bid or quote is needed.  
Failed: 4 yes (Bachelor, Boyett, Dingman, Gilbert) / 7 no (Nancy Austin was not available 
to vote) 
 

SECOND MOTION TO AMEND: Director Lawless moved, Director Crothers seconded to 
decrease the amount to $10,000 from $25,000. 
Passed: 10 yes / 2 no (Bachelor, Dingman) 
 

AMENDED MOTION PASSED: unanimous 
 

Amended Motion: Approve the Procurement and Spending Authority Policy with the 
amended $10,000 amount for not requiring a bid and put this policy in the Corporate 
Policy Manual in Part 5 Fiscal/Accounting, as Section 4.  
 

G. Major Capital Projects Policy 
MOTION: Director Crothers moved, Director Blake seconded to approve the traditional 
major project approval process is followed until a new policy is defined and approved by 
the Board. The process is defined in the Board report under Background Justification. 
 

16



MOTION: Director Crothers moved that the Board request detailed project plans with all 
contingencies identified for all major projects. Plans will be updated monthly. The Board 
will commit to addressing any potential delays caused by the Board or its committees.  

MOTION TO AMEND: Director Boyett moved, Director Gilbert seconded to amend that 
both of these motions be sent back to the appropriate committees for 
recommendations: Board Affairs, Fiscal Affairs, Planning and Evaluation Committees. 
Then send to staff for direction. Use Director Crothers’ recommendation for the 
committees to work from. 
FAILED: 6 yes / 6 no (Austin, Carden, Coon, Crothers, Dean, Hillyer) 

MOTION: Director Boyett moved, Director Lawless seconded to table this discussion 
until we receive more feedback from staff and committees. Bring this back at the June 
Work Session and Regular Meeting. 
Passed: 8 yes / 4 no (Austin, Crothers, Dean, Hillyer) 

9. Committee Reports – There were no committee reports due to time. It was suggested to put
the Committee Reports at the beginning of the meeting.
A. Audit Austin 
B. Board Affairs Coon 
C. Fiscal Affairs Crothers 
D. Investments Lawless 
E. Nominations & Elections Dingman 
F. Planning & Evaluation Hillyer 

10. Member Comments – There were no member comments.

Director Coon said this is her last meeting after serving for six years. She enjoyed her last year
especially with this Board. She thanked her fellow Directors and members who served on
various committees. She has learned so much over all these years and serving on all the
committees. She offered that GVR Board be mindful of all the many reasons people move to
Green Valley and how GVR is used differently by all these people. Keep making GVR better for 
the future. She thanked Kathi Bachelor, President, for working well with the CEO and
attending all the committee meetings. She thanked the staff, also.

President Bachelor thanked Director Coon for her service and all her knowledge used in her
years of service.

11. Adjournment
MOTION: Director Hillyer moved, Director Dean seconded to adjourn the meeting at
3:58pm.
Passed: unanimous

17



MINUTES 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS SPECIAL MEETING 

Wednesday, March 29, 2023 – 10:30am 
West Center Auditorium / Zoom 

*Code of Conduct

Directors:  Nancy Austin, Kathi Bachelor, Barbara Blake, Ted Boyett, Jim Carden, Carol Crothers, 
Laurel Dean, Beth Dingman, Marge Garneau, Steve Gilbert, Bart Hillyer, Bev Lawless, Scott Somers 
(non-voting) 

AGENDA TOPIC 
1. Call to Order / Roll Call – Establish Quorum

The President being in the chair and the Secretary being present.
President Bachelor called the meeting to order at 10:23am MST. Secretary Hillyer called the roll;
quorum established.

2. Adopt or Amend Agenda
MOTION: Director Bachelor moved, Director Gilbert seconded to amend the Agenda to include
Action Items 3.B. Approval of Audit for 2022.
Failed: 6 yes (Bachelor, Blake, Boyett, Dingman, Gilbert, Lawless) / 6 no

3. Action Items
A. Nomination and Election of Board Officers

1) President
a) Nomination

 Bachelor 5 will run 
 Garneau 6 will run 
 Hillyer 1  will not run 

b) Election
 Bachelor 5 
 Garneau 7 President 

2) Vice-President
a) Nomination

 Bachelor 1 will not run 
 Crothers 6 will run 
 Lawless 5 will run 

b) Election First Vote Second Vote Final Vote 
 Crothers 6 6 7    Vice-President 
 Lawless 5*   6 5 

*NOTE: The first vote was miscounted due to a blank election card included in Lawless
card stack. It was registered as a tie with Crothers 6 and Lawless 6 so it was voted on
again.

Consent Agenda A.2

18



 
3) Secretary 

a) Nomination 
 Bachelor 1  will run 
 Dean 1 will not run 
 Dingman 4 will run 
 Gilbert 2 will run 
 Hillyer 4 will run 

b) Election 
 Bachelor 2 
 Dingman 3 
 Gilbert 1 
 Hillyer  6   Secretary 

4) Treasurer 
a) Nomination 

 Bachelor 1 will run 
 Blake 1 will not run 
 Carden 4 will run 
 Dean 1 will not run 
 Dingman 1 will not run 
 Gilbert 3 will not run 

b) Election 
 Bachelor 5  
 Carden 7   Treasurer 

5) Assistant Secretary 
a) Nomination 

 Bachelor 2 will not run 
 Blake 7 will run 
 Boyett 1 will not run 
 Dingman 2 will run 

b) Election 
 Blake 8   Assistant Secretary 
 Dingman 4  

6) Assistant Treasurer 
a) Nomination 

 Austin 1 will not run 
 Dean 4 will run 
 Dingman 2 will not run 
 Gilbert 4 will not run 
 Lawless 1 will not run 

b) Election 
 Dean 10   Assistant Treasurer 

 
 

19



 
4. Member Comments – 1 

GVR Members are encouraged to serve on a GVR Committee. Email Hotline@gvrec.org stating 
interest in serving on a specific Committee. 

 
5. Adjournment  

MOTION: Director Boyett moved, Director Austin seconded to adjourn the meeting at 11:06am 
MST.  

 Passed: unanimous 

20



MINUTES 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS SPECIAL MEETING 

Wednesday, April 5, 2023 - 1pm 
West Center Auditorium / Zoom 

*Code of Conduct

Directors:  Marge Garneau (President), Carol Crothers (Vice President), Bart Hillyer (Secretary), 
Jim Carden (Treasurer), Barbara Blake (Assistant Secretary), Laurel Dean (Assistant Treasurer), 
Nancy Austin, Kathi Bachelor, Ted Boyett, Beth Dingman, Steve Gilbert, Bev Lawless, Scott Somers 
(non-voting) 

Visitors: 11 including support staff 

AGENDA TOPIC 
1. Call to Order / Roll Call – Establish Quorum

The President being in the chair and the Secretary being present.
President Garneau called the meeting to order at 1:01pm MST. Secretary Hillyer called the roll;
quorum established.

2. Adopt or Amend Agenda
MOTION: Director Crothers moved, Director Carden seconded to approve the Agenda.
Passed: unanimous

3. Action Items
A. Approval of Committee Chairs

MOTION: Director Blake moved, Director Austin seconded to approve Committee Chairs as
appointed by the President: Nancy Austin – Chair of Audit Committee, Carol Crothers – Chair
of Board Affairs Committee, Jim Carden – Chair of Fiscal Affairs Committee, Bev Lawless –
Chair of Investments Committee, Beth Dingman – Chair of Nominations and Elections
Committee, and Kathi Bachelor – Chair of Planning and Evaluation Committee.
Passed: 8 yes / 4 no (Bachelor, Boyett, Gilbert, Lawless)

MOTION TO AMEND: Director Boyett moved, Director Lawless seconded to separate the
slate to vote for each Committee Chair.
Failed: 5 yes (Bachelor, Boyett, Dingman, Gilbert, Lawless) / 7 no

B. Acceptance of Audit
David Webster, CFO, asks the Board to formally approve and accept the Audit for 2022.

MOTION: Director Crothers moved, Director Blake seconded to accept the Audit.
Passed: unanimous

4. Member Comments – 1

5. Adjournment
MOTION: Director Dingman moved, Director Crothers seconded to adjourn the meeting at
1:24pm MST.
Passed: unanimous

Consent Agenda A.3

21



Green Valley Recreation, Inc. 

Board of Directors Meeting 

Approval of Tentative Annual Meeting Schedule 
Prepared By: Nanci Moyo, Admin. Sup. Meeting Date: April 26, 2023 

Presented By: Marge Garneau, President Consent Agenda: No 

Originating Committee / Department: 
Board of Directors/Administration 

Action Requested: 
Review and approve the tentative Annual Meeting Schedule. 

Strategic Plan Goal: 
GOAL 5: Provide sound, effective governance and leadership for the corporation 

Background Justification: 
The Corporate Policy Manual (CPM) states in Part 2 Board of Directors, Section 
3 Meetings – 2.3.1.D.5 A tentative annual meeting schedule shall be approved 
by the Board at its first Regular Meeting following the Annual Meeting.  

Fiscal Impact: 
None 

Board Options: 
1) Approve the tentative Annual Meeting Schedule as presented in the Board
Calendar and Annual Governance Calendar.
2) Make changes to the tentative Annual Meeting Schedule and approve the
changes.
3) Do not take action on the tentative Annual Meeting Schedule.

Staff Recommendation: 
Option #1 

Recommended Motion: 
Move to approve the tentative Annual Meeting Schedule as presented in the 
Board Calendar and the Annual Governance Calendar. 

Attachments: 
1) Board Calendar
2) Annual Governance Calendar

Action Item 9.A

22



Date Time Loc Type Agenda Items Presenter
Wednesday, April 26, 2023 2pm WC/Zoom Board of Directors Regular Meeting

Approve Annual Meeting Calendar Board President
Quarterly Financial and Personnel Costs Presentation Webster
Discuss and Award Contract for Security Cameras Somers
2022 Surplus Transfer Webster

Wednesday, May 17, 2023 1pm WC Rm 2 Tentative Board of Directors Executive Session - Closed
Legal Issue Voluntary Deed Request Somers
Legal Issue on Potential New Development South of Canoa Ranch Somers

Wednesday, May 17, 2023 2pm WC Rm 2/Zoom Board of Directors Training - Closed
Governance Training - Specifically Committees - Purpose of the 
Committees Carrillo

Wednesday, May 24, 2023 2pm WC/Zoom Board of Directors Regular Meeting
Approve Committee Work Plans Somers
Discuss and Approve Major Capital Projects Process Somers
Discuss and Approve Next Steps Ceramics Club Space Jund
Discuss and Approve Next Steps Lapidary Club Space Jund

Wednesday, September 27, 2023 2pm WC/Zoom Board of Directors Regular Meeting

Wednesday, October 18, 2023 2pm WC/Zoom Board of Directors Work Session - Tentative
Presentation of Proposed Budget Webster

Wednesday, October 25, 2023 2pm WC/Zoom Board of Directors Regular Meeting
Set Record Date N&E Chair
Approve Annual Budget and all Fees Webster
Quarterly Financial Presentation Webster
Form 990 Webster

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Thursday, April 20, 2023

2023-2024 MEETING SCHEDULE
(Tentative)

BOD Work Sessions / BOD Meetings

Page 1

Attachment: Board Calendar

23



Date Time Loc Type Agenda Items Presenter
BOD Work Sessions / BOD Meetings

Wednesday, November 15, 2023 2pm WC/Zoom Board of Directors Regular Meeting

Wednesday, January 3, 2024 2pm WC/Zoom Board of Directors Executive Session
CEO Evaluation Board President

Wednesday, January 24, 2024 2pm WC/Zoom Board of Directors Regular Meeting

Wednesday, February 28, 2024 2pm WC/Zoom Board of Directors Regular Meeting

Wednesday, March 20, 2024 2pm WC/Zoom Board of Directors Regular Meeting

Wednesday, March 27, 2024 9am WC/Zoom Annual Meeting of the Corporation

Wednesday, March 27, 2024 10:30am WC/Zoom Board of Directors Special Meeting

ANNUAL REMINDER LIST: POTENTIAL AGENDA ITEMS/STAFF ITEMS:
Fees Schedule/Late Fees Add Quarterly Reports for April, July, September, January
GVR complete GVRF Request for Funding 
Grant Application for MAP - every 3 
years  Next time: 09012024
Record Date for Member's Voting - Done 
at October Reg. Meeting
Board Annual Dues decision for each 
fiscal year on or before - Done at 
October Reg. Mtg (Before Dec. 10 every 
year) Included in All Fees (above)
Financial Policies
Approve Annual Calendar in April Reg. 
Mtg.
Review Strategic Plan every April with 
new Board
Provide Board the Link to Website in 
October for Form 990 

Page 2 24



Annual Board Development & Governance Calendar (March 29, 2023 – March 27, 2024) 
Board Year beginning Immediately Following Annual Meeting (End of March) Dates Before April are 2024 

Governance Task 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

Fe
br

ua
ry

 

M
ar

ch
 

Ap
ril

 

M
ay

 

Ju
ne

 

Ju
ly

 

Au
gu

st
 

Se
pt

em
be

r 

O
ct

ob
er

 

N
ov

em
be

r 

De
ce

m
be

r 

Meetings & 
Key Events 

Board Work Session (Tentative) May 17 Oct 18 

Board Meetings Jan 24 Feb 28 Mar 20 Apr 26 May 24 Sep 27 Oct 25 Nov 15 

Annual Meeting Mar 27 

Executive Session Jan 3 May 17 

Fiduciary Approve Annual Budget Nov 15 

Quarterly Financial Report Jan 25 Apr 26 Oct 26 

Audit Review 
990 Review Oct 26 

Budget Planning to Reflect Strategic Priorities 
Board 
Development 

Board Self-Assessment 
Set Record Date Oct 25 

Annual Calendar Review and Approval Apr 26 

Election of new board directors Mar 21 

Election of Board Officers Mar 27 

Committee Applications Apr 14 

Committee assignments Apr 26 

Strategic Plan Review 
Annual Work Plan 
New Board Member Orientation Apr 5 

Planning Annual Planning Retreat Apr 5 

Online Board Training Apr 10 

Board Retreat May 17 

Volunteer Recognition Breakfast/Luncheon Mar 1 

MAP MAP Application Opening Oct 16 

MAP Application Deadline Dec 15 

Chief 
Executive 

Performance Evaluation Jan 3 

Attachment: Annual Governance Calendar

25



Green Valley Recreation, Inc. 

Board of Directors Meeting
2022 Surplus Calculation and Transfer 

Prepared By: David Webster, CFO      Meeting Date: April 26, 2023 

Presented By: David Webster, CFO  Consent Agenda: No 

Originating Committee / Department: 
Fiscal Affairs Committee 
Action Requested: 
Accept  the Green Valley Recreation, Incorporated (GVR) 2022 Surplus Calculation and 
approve a transfer from Operating Cash to Initiatives in the amount of $428,596. 

Strategic Plan Goal: 
Goal 4: Cultivate and maintain a sound financial base that generates good value for our 
members. 

Background Justification: 
Green Valley Recreation’s Surplus Policy is stated in Section 3 – Reserve Policy Part 5.3.2 Part 
C. entitled Calculation of Operating Surplus or Deficit.  This policy was updated and
approved by the Board of Directors in 2021.   The 2022 financial statements have been
audited and GVR staff have prepared a surplus calculation for the fiscal year ending
December 31, 2022.  The amount of the 2022 Surplus is $428,596.

Fiscal Impact: 
The intent of the surplus calculation is to determine if there is a surplus of operating revenue 
over operating expenses each year that can be transferred to a reserve fund.  Approving a 
transfer of $428,596 will reduce Operating Cash and increase the Initiatives fund by 
$428,596.  An estimate of $400,000 was previously included in the Cash Requirements report 
for 2023 and the Capital Plan projection for 2023.  GVR has sufficient Operating Cash to incur 
this transfer. 

A copy of the updated Capital Plan is included to illustrate that the Initiatives Fund is the 
appropriate account to deposit the Surplus into. With this $428,596 transfer, the projected 
end of year balance of the Initiative Fund is $446,272. 

Board Options: 
1. Approve the $428,596 2022 Surplus transfer out of Operating Cash into the Initiatives
Fund.
2. Not approve any transfer for the 2022 Surplus.
3. Approve an alternative to transferring the 2022 Surplus.

Staff Recommendation: 
Option #1 

Action Item 9.B

26



Recommended Motion: 
Move to accept the Green Valley Recreation, Incorporated (GVR) 2022 Surplus Calculation 
and approve a transfer from Operating Cash to Initiatives in the amount of $428,596. 

Attachments: 
Surplus Calculation 

27



Attachment: Surplus Calculation

28



29



30



31



Green Valley Recreation, Inc. 

Board of Directors Regular Meeting 

Award Contract to Preventronics Security Cameras 

Prepared By: Randy Cheatham, IT Director Meeting Date: April 26, 2023 

Presented By: Scott Somers, CEO Consent Agenda: No 

Originating Committee / Department:  
IT Department in collaboration with the office of the COO and the Facilities Director. 

Action Requested: 
Award contract to Preventronics for security camera provision and installation, not to exceed 
$200,000, and authorize the President to sign the contract. 

Strategic Plan Goal: 
Goal 1: Provide excellent facilities for members to participate in a variety of active and social 
opportunities. 

Background Justification: 
Security concerns have thankfully not been a historical concern at GVR. However, it is a 
different time than before, and with a recent intrusion at Las Campanas, staff and others 
agree that increased security is needed to ensure a safer environment for all GVR members, 
guest, and visitors. Security cameras placed in strategic locations (e.g., parking lots, points of 
entry, walkways) can help deter nefarious activity as well as help provide evidence during an 
investigation and Code of Conduct allegations. 

Staff issued a request for proposals (RFP) and received bids from three vendors:  
Preventronics, Titan Alarm, and Johnson Controls for security cameras covering 14 centers, 
the Administrative Office, the Pickleball Center, the Del Sol Clubhouse, and the Facility 
Maintenance Building. Staff also priced similar cameras with a well-known online vendor, 
Verkada. After meeting with each local company and explaining the scope of work, each of 
the three local companies submitted bids. Verkada’s pricing for the cameras alone (less labor, 
less misc. switching and cabling, less yearly licensing) was much more costly and dropped 
from consideration. 

Preventronics is GVR’s current vendor for all DSX access control systems that operate all of 
the doors and gates. Their staff is familiar with every center throughout the campus and the 
needs and expectations of the GVR community. 

Staff therefore recommends awarding a contract to Preventronics for security camera 
provision and installation, not to exceed $200,000. While the contract price is for $153.729, 
staff recommends allowing for additional contingency to cover unexpected costs or 
additional cameras should the need be warranted without the need to come back to the 
Board recommending a change order.  

Action Item 9.C

32



Fiscal Impact: 
This capital expense was not budgeted. Staff recommends funds for this project be expended 
from the Initiatives Funds.  Annual cost to maintain this system is $15,373 and would be 
budgeted as an operational expense going forward. Maintenance includes: 

• 4-hour service response time between 6am-6pm, M-F.
• Top priority service calls.
• Bi-annual inspections of all hardware/software and database maintenance.
• Software upgrades as necessary.
• All parts. (1 years)
• All labor. (1 years)
• Use of spare equipment to minimize downtime.

Board Options: 
1. Approve the GVR staff recommended contract with Preventronics to install cameras

at all facilities in strategic locations at a cost not to exceed $200,000, and authorize
the President to sign the contract.

2. Approve the GVR staff recommended contract with Preventronics to install cameras
at all facilities in strategic locations at a cost not to exceed a different amount, and
authorize the President to sign the contract.

3. Direct staff to pursue less expensive options with fewer cameras, not to exceed a
certain limit.

4. Direct staff to do nothing with cameras at this time.

Staff Recommendation: 
Option #1 

Recommended Motion: 
Move to Award contract to Preventronics for security camera provision and installation, not 
to exceed $200,000, and authorize the President to sign the contract. 

Attachments: 
Draft Contract with Preventronics 
Proposal Summary 
Incident Examples 

33



Attachment: Draft Contract with Preventronics

34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



Proposals: 

Preventronics 
• 123 cameras
• $153,729 total cost
• $1,250/cost per camera
• $15,372 Optional service/maintenance annual contract

Johnson Controls 
• 84 cameras
• $186,905 total cost
• $2,213/cost per camera
• $21,327 Annual service charge and license

Titan Alarm 
• 103 cameras
• $135,823 total cost
• $1,319/cost per camera
• $8736 Annual license fee

Attachment: Proposal Summary

80



November 20, 2022—Intruder at Las Campanas, women’s locker room. 

February 9, 2023—Apparent migrant bathing in sink at SRS in restroom near 
Photography Club-fled across the footbridge to a waiting vehicle. 

March 1, 2023—Intoxicated person climbs wall at Desert Hills around midnight and 
struggles to remain awake in the spa. Is still on the premises at 5am. 

There have also been reports of verbal and physical altercations between members, 
harassment, minor theft, and injuries from fitness equipment. 

Attachment: Incident Examples

81


	Attachment Board & Leadership Team Calendars.pdf
	Board Calendar




